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                                              33 E. Broadway Ave.
Meridian, ID  83642

208.863.4160

www.meridiandevelopmentcorp.com

MINUTES                                           
 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Wednesday, May 11, 2011, 7:30 a.m.

Meridian City Hall Conference Room

33 East Broadway Avenue - Meridian, Idaho
1. Call Meeting to Order (Pipal):
Called meeting to order at 7:30 a.m.
2. Roll-call Attendance (Pipal):
     X
Julie Pipal – Chairman
     X
 Keith Bird – Member 

     X 
Craig Slocum – Vice-Chairman
___X__ Jim Escobar - Member

     X
Eric Jensen – Secretary/Treasurer
     O
 Larry Lipschultz – Member 



__X___ Tammy de Weerd – Member 

     X
 Joe Borton – Counsel


     X
 Ashley Ford – Project Manager
 

3. Confirm Agenda (Pipal):
De Weerd:  I move we approve the agenda as printed.
Bird:  Second.

Pipal:  All those in favor say aye.  Opposed?

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.

4.
Approve Consent Agenda (Pipal):

a. Approve Minutes of April 27, 2011 Regular Meeting:

b. Accept Treasurer’s Report and Notice of Bills Paid:

De Weerd:  I move we approve the Consent Agenda and authorize the Chair to sign and treasurer/secretary to attest.

Bird:  Second.

Pipal:  Do we do this in voice vote or --?

Borton:  All in one.

De Weerd:  No, you do voice.

Pipal:  A roll call?  Okay.

Roll Call Vote:  Slocum, aye; Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; De Weerd, aye; Pipal, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
5.      Broadway Building Construction Update (Wright Brothers):
Ford:  As you all requested for at the last meeting – Bob (inaudible) who is the Project Superintendent for the Broadway building and to come to this board meeting to give us a brief update as to what has been – activities that have been conducted in the last 30 days and looking ahead to the next 30 days.  

(Project Superintendent):  We have completed the majority of the ground, storm drain and water service to the adjacent building under 2nd Street – during the installation (inaudible) storm drain (inaudible) we encountered an existing gas line which there was really no way for us to adjust storm drain (inaudible) without conflict of existing gas lines and we had to have the utility companies come in and reroute the gas line so we could get our pipe line in – (inaudible) – with the architect to figure out how we are going to route all of these utility costs impacts – we are moving forward as far as curb and gutter (inaudible), pressure irrigation and that along 2nd Street are intended to have that street opened back up roughly the 27th of May and paved and ready for traffic (inaudible) no more unforeseen – concrete issue and existing footing that was in place when we went to dig the foundations and that has been removed and we moved forward and got the building foundation in place and back filled and the perimeter is pretty well completed and moving forward (inaudible) as far as plumbing, (inaudible) and electrical and those go underneath the slab and that is today.  As soon as that is complete we will move forward with the interior footing excavation (inaudible) so we can pour the slab for the building and that is anticipated that it be complete roughly by the end of next week.  We also are moving forward with the site lighting electrical out to the parking lot – Idaho Power and Dave Miller have started their process of the installation of the fiber optic cable and (inaudible) poles and working on the telephone communications and underground power – (inaudible) a big issue with Nampa Meridian Irrigation District as far as the Hunter Lateral.  The video camera – in specs we perform part of our contract so (inaudible) lateral has a crack in the top of it, which the Irrigation District is requiring that we not go over the top (inaudible) damage so that they can replace or they can have someone replace the section of pipe that is outside of our contract crossing the alley. So (inaudible) utilities that is subcontracted to Idaho Power and currently are out there performing (inaudible) and go down underneath the Hunter Lateral (inaudible) – conduits installed from the alley way at 3rd on the east side of the project up to Hunter Lateral or close to Hunter Lateral where the (inaudible) transformer will go on the (inaudible) side of the park and we have (inaudible) and telephone cable installed from roughly the east side of (inaudible) data communications business right there at the alley – westward over to behind the Meridian Saddle Shop where the (inaudible) box will go for Idaho Power and then north along 2nd Street with the future Qwest conduits for future service.  Repaid a little over $2,100 to Qwest for the conduit and that cost will be passed on – so again an additional charge from Qwest due to this Hunter Lateral issue – they will set a telephone pedestal east of the Hunter Lateral and the original location shown on the drawings and they will set another one to the west of the Hunter Lateral by your transformer and sets in by the trash enclosure and then they will run a (inaudible) cable between the two pedestals in order to -- minimizing (inaudible)  underneath that Hunter Lateral so we can go through one (inaudible) – if they hadn’t done that they would have had five (inaudible) underneath that lateral in addition to the Idaho Power (inaudible) and to put in pipe would probably be another $8,000 to $10,000 – it was the most cost effective way to get the telephone communication routed – or at least the impact.  As soon as they can get the (inaudible) completed the second box is a transformer set and get that power hooked up then we can get the power switched over (inaudible).  Idaho Power has a minimum requirement of 20 feet away from the power lines – the impact to the building is that roughly 30 feet from the north building line, that grid line is about as far north on the building that we can go on the construction due to the power line being in place for safety concerns.  Those lines are roughly 12,500 ADA which requires (inaudible) away so you can’t go up the scaffolding or the second floor or any of that.  We are trying to work with Idaho Power to see if it is possible to get that power line dropped down out of the way so it doesn’t (inaudible).  As soon as we are done at 2nd Street, we will move over to 3rd and do the underground storm drain (inaudible) and there will be another street section closure where we will close it at Idaho and 3rd and Broadway and 3rd – we have ACHD permits set up where we can do a full length closure on 2nd Street and then once that is complete and turned over to traffic, then do 3rd Street and do a full closure – it is the most efficient way to get the underground (inaudible).  With the amount of the work that has to be done the size of the equipment will be used – then once 3rd Street is complete then we will do a delineation on Broadway and take both lanes of traffic and move them to the south side of the street so we can work along the property line and right of way along the south side of Broadway.  So about the end of – by next Thursday we anticipate to be over on 3rd Street and should be – we will have slab poured on the building – I do not believe that Idaho Power will have all of the power routed and in place (inaudible).  We are still moving forward as fast as we possibly can.  

Ford:  Questions for Bob? 
Pipal:  A lot of information.  Thank you very much.  Ashley do you want to continue with Item 6? 
6.
Broadway Building Partnership Update (Lipschultz/Ford):

Ford:  Basically that was a synopsis of everything that was going on – more than you wanted to know, but I thought it was also good and am happy to hear that there is a lot going on right now.  We still don’t have the change orders in front of us yet as for all the additional costs and they are still ongoing and doing the research and Erstad is vetting them out and asking them a lot of hard questions and so have not seen those numbers yet.  As a result, we did sit down yesterday, Eric, myself, Larry and our CPA to look at our budget in preparation for the next meeting; unfortunately without those costs we are just making some broad assumptions right now as to where that money is going to come from and how that would affect certain line items in our budget and we have started that discussion and hopefully we will have more information at the next meeting. Joe and I had a meeting with the City Planning Department yesterday thinking I was being proactive because in – and Meridian should be proud of this – in any other jurisdiction you cannot do a condo plat until pretty much the building is at least in place.  With Meridian because we have pulled a building permit they will allow us to start the condo plat now.  So we do have to do a property boundary adjustment because there are several parcels that make up the site.  So we need to do that first; then we can do the condo plat and then we would have to do a conditional use permit because a surface parking lot in Old Town is a CUP.  Apparently they went through that process for the HUB project and they never asked for a time extension, so it expired and so we have to go through that step again.  So the good news is where as I was more concerned about the timing and being able to get paid from VRT and COMPASS because obviously we don’t get paid until the sales and purchase agreement is complete and that can’t happen until the condo plat – I was thinking that was going to happen maybe December and we can probably have this really quickly.  We are probably four to five months – so that is good news.  At least it was in my opinion.  Another piece of good news is we had to pay $68,000 to Idaho Power in December in order to get on their schedule.  What we weren’t aware of was that the general contractor had a $90,000 allowance for electrical services, so we are going to be getting a deducted change order from that, from that $90,000 that we are going to be able to utilize for other change orders that may be forthcoming.  So another little piece of good news, at least in my opinion again.    I think that is all I have at this point.

Pipal: Anybody have any questions?

Slocum:  Ashley will we just hire one of our on call engineers to --? To pull together the consolidation and the conduit?

Ford:  Our civil survey – our on call survey – so my intention is next week when I am back in town to sit down with them and the architect and just make sure we are all on the same page to get that process started.  

Slocum:  Thank you.

Pipal:  If there are no more questions we will move onto Item 7. 
7.      Bank Assessment Results (CSHQA):

Ford: Initially we thought that CSHQA would be able to be here today, but unfortunately that wasn’t the case.  In your packets you do have the existing conditions report for the two bank buildings.  If you are like me and looked through it there was a little bit of (inaudible) shock associated with both of those buildings – 
De Weerd:  (Inaudible).

Ford:  Well I can break it down a little bit better, but I did talk to the project architect who did do the assessment to have a better understanding as to – okay what is absolutely required? What will we have to do if we try to do something to the length and what is that maybe could be put off a year or two?  What is immediate and what is maybe more long term?  Just to be able to truly understand.  So starting with the former Bank of Cascades building.  I had them put an executive summary in there and in that executive summary; those are the items that in that first paragraph, those are the items that have to be taken care of either because of code issues, compliance issues with ADA or just immediate need for whatever reason.  So going through each of the items with them, the overall total is about $41,000. Those items that are required in order to have occupancy is between the $25,000 range and I think that was at least from the bank sub committee’s standpoint, I think we were thinking $25,000 to $30,000 will probably be needed.  That was the number that was kind of going around.  The other items that would need to be taken care of are about the $16,000 range.  I think that is more in line of what we were thinking, but again, this is certainly open for discussion.  With the former Washington Federal Bank building and in both cases most of it has to do that the big ticket items are roofing issues, ADA compliance.  While the Washington Federal Bank building is in better condition overall the big ticket item for this one is the roof and their standing water and there is quite a bit of damage to the roof.  So the required fixes for this is in the $50,000 to the (inaudible) range, whereas the optional items that we could put off for a few years is in the $10,000, so obviously this is the building that has a little bit more of an impact from a budget standpoint.  But I think this information we needed no matter what, especially as we have potential tenants that like to come in here and for them to get financing from a bank it needs to have an understanding of what code compliance issues need to be made.  So mostly it comes down to ADA and roofs – the two big ticket items.  Obviously these were needed especially as we have our discussion on the Ground Floor in terms of potentially relocating that elsewhere.  If there are any questions I can certainly try and answer those or I can get back with you after a conversation with the architect.  
Pipal:  I had a background question and maybe our historian knows.  Our unofficial historian.  Some of these things – and I don’t really know anything about purchasing commercial real estate, but some of these things seem to be things that would come to light when you purchase a piece of real estate.  Member Bird would you like to help me?

Bird:  I don’t disagree with you at all.  I think that some of these things that have slipped through (inaudible) – probably the biggest reason is because we didn’t have the financer – if you had a financer you would have thought that the lenders would have come out and made this readjustment.  While I think we made a pretty good buy on it – 
De Weerd:  You need to speak up.

Bird: -- oh, while I think we made a pretty good buy on the building site, we kind of maybe had overlooked some stuff.  This Bank of the Cascades (inaudible) to be truthful the best thing for that is probably to take a bull dozer in there and clean it off.  I am quite shocked looking at the pictures of the Washington Trust Bank building – (inaudible) flat roofs – I think it is something that we have to really look into it and see if we can’t rent it out – it doesn’t sound like it is too expensive to bring out – I am (inaudible) the seller should have to stand for most of the expense in my opinion.  

Pipal: How long have we had them in our possession?  When did we own them?

Bird: The Bank of the Cascades a couple or three years.

Slocum:  Three or four.

Bird:  Yeah, maybe four. The trust maybe (inaudible).

Ford:  (Inaudible) architect asked some timing estimates and so we were to (inaudible) the needed upgrades, it looks like it is a 4 ½ to 5 months process to kind of go through the different steps in terms of securing the architectural engineering services, two weeks, architectural engineering design, four weeks – the city review for about four weeks, there is a bit of a process and then construction about six weeks.  So it ends up being about 18 weeks assuming everything goes perfectly.  So something to keep in mind as we talk about the Ground Floor in terms of our timing with that lease if we are going to make a change.  

Pipal:  Does anyone have any additional questions?  I will try and speak up as well.  
8. Ground Floor Discussion:

Ford:  Basically this was one of the first steps in order to analyze what we were going to do with the Ground Floor and you do have a signed lease extension agreement and we have until June 1st to make a decision as to what we are going to do (inaudible) to negotiate the lease at the current site for the Ground Floor.  So at the next board meeting on the 25th we will need to make a formal decision.  I was hoping that this bank assessment would spur some conversation and get the bank sub committee some direction – are there additional items that you would like us to explore in the next couple of weeks or do we feel comfortable that we want to take a path at this time?  
Pipal: For the Board’s information as we talked about the bank subcommittee and then the Ground Floor, we have a great relationship with the building owners of where the Ground Floor is and our partnership with them has provided a great space that there probably is some commercial demand for.  In that context we have looked at – well now that we have made that investment and that may bring in additional business or additional occupancy, if we could move the Ground Floor to one of the bank buildings.  That there may be an opportunity to increase the activity downtown.  The assessment, I think, would have to be looked at and juxtaposed against how much it actually costs us to run the Ground Floor on an annual basis because since we own the building we would have fewer costs over the long run, but obviously we would need to make an investment and it would probably be helpful if we could get some input from the Board on a general direction of what you would like us to further look at and I am on both of those sub committees – so, how you would like us to proceed because we have some good information now, but obviously we need to work with the Ground Floor building owner and potential tenants as well as ourselves for those bank buildings.

Ford:  Just for the Board’s clarification, the lease per year that we are paying to the Ground Floor is $33,000 just to keep it in perspective as to the number’s that came back.

Bird:  How much?

Ford:  $33,000.

Pipal:  Thank you.

Bird:  My thoughts on that is if we could get it into one of these existing buildings that is ours it would be to our benefit.  Not only will these buildings deteriorate sitting empty worse than they already are – Jim and Craig knows this that for some reason if you don’t have heat and things going in, they deteriorate fast.  We went to an investment there and I would like to see the Ground Floor get big enough that we could use both of these buildings.  $33,000 you could do a lot (inaudible) on both of those buildings.  

Runyon:  Gwen Runyon with RFR Properties.  I guess I am a little confused as to what the ultimate goal is for those buildings?  I mean, I don’t hear discussion that this is a short term (inaudible) thing or ultimately turn around and sell them or lease them?  Before you put a lot of money into it, my thoughts would be ultimately what is the end goal for those? Is it intended to retain those, do we know?  
Pipal:  My understanding has always been that they were purchased partly because of the small parcels and anybody can speak up and correct me – we have a lot of small parcels in downtown Meridian and in order to make them attractive to developers you need to combine them to do something more than just – so part of the reason behind the purchases was to create some bigger parcels so that we could work with developers so that they would come in.  I haven’t heard a lot of – I have heard some ideas about finding someone to purchase them or renovate them to move into them.  I don’t think the intention ever was for us to maintain ownership over a long term.
Slocum:  I concur.  I think the purchase of those and the thought of others in the same block was to consolidate so that ultimately something more along the lines of what our master plan vision is would happen there.  

Runyon:  That being the case – if you contemplate moving Ground Floor over there, which I kind of like the idea, but what I would hate to see is a lot of money put into it if ultimately that is not the goal to have that a permanent home.  You walk through the building; it doesn’t have to be beautiful and perfect to have the Ground Floor in there.  It can be exactly what it is and with some of the immediate issues that need to be resolved for occupancy or any kind of deterioration in the building, but in the analysis for the Ground Floor moving in there, I would say keep it bare bones.  Don’t invest a lot in that structure if ultimately that is not what it is going to be – 

Pipal:  Thank you.  Gwen one minute before you – just generally what do you think some of the tenants would think about if we did move it when we have been working on building partnerships with these folks?

Runyon:  You know it is really kind of funny because when people come in, they really think this is cool.  Ultimately I don’t think they care.  The floor plan for the Bank of the Cascades building really lends itself to what it is we are doing at the Ground Floor right now.  It has that entry area, which could be our shared space so to speak that we have now at Ground Floor.  It has that separate long room that actually would be similar to our events area and what is nice about it is it does have doors so (inaudible) conflict with what the shared space is – In the last 30 days I have probably talked to 4 people that wanted private offices and we would have those.  I have to turn those people away because we just don’t have that.  Not to say that we do all of this and – are we going to be too late to the ballgame and six months down the road and things are different – (inaudible).  The people that are at Ground Floor now, I think that the physical place is cool, but I think they also have a feeling of kind of camaraderie that transfers (inaudible).  So I don’t think that there would be any great hardship with them, but I haven’t discussed it with them.

Pipal:  Thank you very much.

Escobar:  Just to give you some more feedback. I believe the idea of moving it into these buildings is fantastic because we are taking money that we only have to invest once and I am sure we are going to have some continual operations costs, but it allows us to keep these buildings and this land locked up and in use while allowing other businesses to occupy space that we have improved and it still meets the intent of what we are trying to do at the Ground Floor and significantly reduces our overall operating costs.  I would say I am definitely in favor of it as well.  

Pipal:  I think maybe what we probably ought to do is look at a little harder and have Ashley look a little harder at timing in a transition and what that would look like because it would be nice to have the building that the Ground Floor currently occupies filled with a private interest.  

Ford:  I think initially in our bank sub committee meeting we had discussed potentially trying to extend the lease through the end of the year and this would give us enough time to make that happen and I will go back and talk to Jim Marsh who is the architect a little bit harder and I assume when we are talking about transitioning it we are thinking Bank of the Cascades building for that transition just to be clear?

Pipal:  It sounds like that is the one that meets the need.  I am seeing Gwen nod.

Ford:  I would agree with that; I just wanted to make sure we were all on the same page.
Slocum:  A less initial investment too.

Ford:  Exactly.  

Pipal:  I do want to say that I agree with Member Bird on some of the cosmetic improvements – not necessarily as cutting edges with what we did at the current Ground Floor site, but give it a nice face for MDC and the Ground Floor – those things that are necessary like carpet and paint –
Bird:  (Inaudible).  You have got to have your heating and air conditioning but other than that we don’t have to put a lot of money into it and the nice thing about these buildings is the parking.  Both buildings have parking.  I realize that is going to stub some toes on this building – if we go – the use of that parking lot, but that should be a real seller for Ground Floor tenants – the parking aspect that they don’t have over at the existing one.  

Pipal:  Is that good?

Ford:  That is good.
9. Community Development Block Grant Funding Discussion (Escobar/Ford):

Ford:  Mr. Escobar was kind enough to attend the community development block grant workshop with me a couple of weeks ago with Lori Den Hartog from the city.  By Monday we had to have a letter in regarding our intent to submit for an application by the end of this month.  I did let Lori know that unfortunately the timing was off for our board meetings so I was not going to be able to specifically address in that letter of intent as to what projects we may be moving forward with.  I promised I would do so immediately after this meeting.  Community development block grants – the city is going for their next round of funding.  They are expecting, I believe that it was a 13 percent decrease from last year’s allotment that they were given and so they have an overall budget of about $230,000 (inaudible) for projects and it is for everyone.  So I asked her realistically if MDC were to put in an application what range should we put in for just to be – have a realistic expectation and she said if we kept our project requests in the $50,000 to $70,000 range she felt that that was something that was doable. Obviously we would have to have a backup and an application that would be due May 27th of this month, but she felt that that was realistic.  So what Commissioner Escobar and I would like is to have discussion with the Board is what projects would you like to see this year so that we can put together this application?  Unfortunately we don’t have a whole lot of time. The 27th is coming up in a couple of weeks, but I do think that obviously we need to use these funds and I do think that there are a lot of potential projects out there and maybe identify a couple of projects – maybe it is not just one. One of the projects that I have been talking about and I know that Commissioner Escobar discussed with me and I know that Commissioner Pipal did as well is the presentation we have on the Nine Mile flood study meets that – I don’t know if it makes sense for MDC to be the lead, however; so if this is one of the projects that we would like to pursue it may be that we would partner with ACHD to go after this study and let them be the lead and us be a partner and be able to at least facilitate discussion between the property owners, but obviously this would be a huge benefit to the property owners to get out of the flood plain, if possible and lower their insurance rates overall – it is called spur economic development in that area. So that is what we were thinking about – façade improvement program is something that was on the table as well, but we wanted to bring this back and (inaudible) decisions – so we are certainly open to suggestions and would like some priorities.
Pipal:  Member Bird had stepped out for a moment – we were just talking about if we were to submit for a CDBG and what might that be?  

Bird:  There is a lot of things on the block grant that I think we could use it for.  There is a lot of buildings that with just a little bit of cosmetic storefront – coming from the glass along the business – you could take an old building and make it look like a new storefront for a third of the cost to go in and remodel.  I think there is avenues like that that we could pursue with some of the owners downtown if we could get a block grant to help them – the only problem you have with the block grants is you bring federal money in and by their stipulations it winds up costing the owner more than it helps.  We know that quite well from across the road.  (Inaudible) because of all of the stipulations.  I understand that this is federal money – I don’t know if these block grants and maybe Anna knows but doesn’t have all of those stipulations, I don’t know.  I am sure it has the Bacon Davis wages and Buy America and all of this other crap, I don’t know.
Pipal:  Anna welcome.

Canning:  Thank you.  Anna Canning the Planning Department.  It does come with (inaudible) and that is the big thing and then MDC acts as the sub-recipients.  It is more work for you all as well because you need to monitor those façade improvements and I think that that is why it is a little bit of a sticky point as well as the flood plain issues in the past and I also wanted to say don’t let that member stymie your creativity on what you might want to do – we are not opposed to – we can roll over money a little bit from one year to the next and so if there is a big project that the city and MDC want to do, they let us hoard money for just a little bit of time and then we would spend it and so if there is a larger project that you are interested in doing and it kind of depends on what category it falls into – we have a limit on how much we can spend on services; we have a limit on how much we can spend on light; so it is really supposed to go for housing and economic development and so if it is in that realm then we can do the larger projects.  I think the Nine Mile Creek is definitely something that we will be looking at regardless, but we will be looking at (inaudible) opportunities.  

Pipal:  Thank you Anna.

Escobar:  This question is directed towards Counsel.  What is our ability to be able to fund façade improvement programs knowing that we have had this discussion in the past about investing money into private property or facilitating that money and investment into private property?

Borton:  There are opportunities and I think that is one of the questions that this Board had for some time and I don’t know if it ever closed the loop on it.  But there are quite detailed limits on what you can do and whether or not the limitations generally speaking the ability to use those funds to enhance an individual’s private property, there are restrictions – but there are opportunities in doing that, but it has got to be a benefit for the greater good has kind of got to be the overriding concept.  The question will be whether the restrictions and scope of what you can complete with the façade improvement program negates the value to the end user.  If I recall you had developed an application process for that – I don’t know – have you received or are you receiving open board applications yet?
Bird:  We had one application and when we got into the nuts and the bolts of it that is when all that cost (inaudible) –

Ford:  In the past when I first started as project manager for Meridian Automotive we received an application but because they are in the flood plain if I remember correctly and there was an issue in regards to that and receiving dollars and that was that main issue and the other one that we received from the McFadden building there was a match requirement from the applicant and they weren’t meeting that, so it wasn’t a valid application.  I heard there was a (inaudible) application prior to me being project manager and it had to do with that is where the big issue came about is can you only benefit one business or does it have to be a block?  I don’t know exactly what that application puts forth specifically.  

Bird:  The only that we ever (inaudible) on was the Meridian Automotive.  That is what we determined – 

De Weerd:  You need to speak up.

Bird:  The only application that our committee has looked at is the Meridian Automotive and not only the flood plain but I think (inaudible) cost went up considerably.

Pipal:  Well there is a benefit to what Ashley said earlier in partnering with an agency like ACHD to deal with the flood plain issue and the Nine Mile Creek because they deal with federal funds on a more regular basis.  They have mechanisms in place and they understand how it works.  I think also the more agencies that we have got involved (inaudible) I think a fairly far reaching impact in our community would be if we could really bring some resources to bare on it not only just people but maybe in the development block grant if there is matching funds and address that flood plain issue for those homeowner’s and business owners and create a long term solution so that it doesn’t get in the way when we try and do something.  I think having the opportunity to have Ashley look at that a little more closely might be a good avenue because while I like the idea of doing façade improvements and possibly some other things, blocks or those kinds of things, as MDC we could work with the local businesses to work on those kinds of those things and not deal with the federal requirements, where something like this we could get multiple agencies involved and address a bigger problem.  Then if we are not in the lead we don’t have to have anybody in a position to have to deal with the federal requirements, where our partners may.

Ford:  Just to be clear I have not spoken to ACHD about taking the lead on this.  This was just a conversation that Lori Den Hartog and I had, but we have as inter agencies, MDC and City of Meridian and ACHD have had (inaudible) flood plain and I think that is something right there that should be pursued, but I have not had that conversation about them being the lead.  I can do that if that is the directive.

De Weerd:  Also in terms of eligible projects the city has been working on pathways to connect to downtown – kind of that premise that all path – how to connect people to the downtown and so we may want to touch base with what they are doing to see if there is another project partnership opportunity in that regard.
Pipal: That would probably also involve ACHD as well.  

De Weerd:  We would like – 

Ford:  And this is with the city’s planning or parks?

Slocum:  Parks.

Pipal:  I don’t know what you all think but I don’t see anything on our agenda that just really says yes this is a perfect fit for community development block grant dollars that we would pursue individually.  I don’t know of anything that is specific to us and that is the top of our priority list –

De Weerd:  I would be curious – I mean we are not the only community that gets community development block grants dollars and just see what other downtowns have been doing with those funds and where it has benefited the downtown business community as a whole and has not had the negative effects that we have seen with the façade improvement and how you can maybe improve a block face in terms of the exterior that there has been a partnership of the businesses as well.  There may be projects that we don’t think of in these few minutes, but other communities have examples and how they have partnered with the downtown businesses and it has been an eligible project.

Pipal:  I am wondering what kind of timeline we would have –

Ford:  That is my main concern is I know this is due in two weeks.  I can certainly try and take a look – like CCDC and see what others – I don’t know how much good information I am going to get back very quickly and that is my only concern and with the timing of the application I am not exactly sure how in depth this application has to be as well.  I don’t have an example as to what it looks like.  

Canning:  Anna Canning, Planning Department.  The process -- although we would love that we only (inaudible) slight budget amendments, we have still amendments going on for 2007.  I think we finally got 2007 done.  So although this deadline is real, don’t let it stop you from thinking and doing bigger things. There are opportunities for – you can use the funding for professional services – if you wanted to hire an architect to do a façade improvement scenario for a whole block and then they do that one year and then maybe the next year you do two buildings and then another two buildings and then another two buildings and hopefully we will have this money for a while, although at some point it is going to get so small that they are just going to say why bother?  I mean we have got about the smallest entitlement that you can get. So we may lose it at some point.  The other thing you can think about is is there are issues for handicap access you can always use CDBG money for (inaudible) and that is a big one as well as – I mentioned the housing and jobs (inaudible).  So that is another category.  Lori can work with you to at least direct you to some people to talk to about the grant (inaudible).
Jensen:  Anna what – we are sort of the smallest entitlement – what size of a project are we talking about to consider --?

Canning:  Well like I said, it is down to about $230,000 per year – a portion of that needs to go to the administration of – basically to pay for Lori.  We can kind of route that (inaudible).  So the big project that came up was about $200,000 to $300,000 and we could probably afford to do that.  Not if it is blight though.  You can only use so much money on blight – like the façade improvement program – you are pretty limited on how much money we can spend on just towards blight.  It depends on a five year window.  I am not trying to confiscate, but it is very dependent on what we have done in the last five years. We haven’t done much blight improvement because the façade improvement program had been taken on.  We haven’t spent much money toward blight.  The only one we have done is the (inaudible) the coffee shop – those apartments that were over there.  Actually I think that is the only blight project that we have done.  There is some blight monies available –

Jensen:  Would the block – talked about façade improvement or block improvement – is that considered blight as well?  I mean redoing the sidewalks in one section --?

Canning: Sidewalks for handicap access is not blight – that – I forget the term they use, but it is a protected class.  That is from a different pot of money.  But actual improvements to façade would be blight.  

Slocum:  A question for Anna and Ashley as we are hopefully soon going to start conversations with the ULI and wondering if that is a potential – as we would look into an entire block, hopefully with their assistance, whether there was an opportunity for some CDBG funds?

Ford: I am glad you are asking that question because I was kind of curious about the same thing or maybe being able to hire other professional consultants or similar type of projects – 

Canning:  I don’t know on that one. I would have to look.  I can have Lori look at it.  As long as you can tie it back to an actual objective, then yes.  It is hard to know if that would be too far away from the objective to do it, but we can look at that.  

Pipal:  I am a little – a little more clarification on the two week deadline – I think that is probably why we were thinking that we needed to find something that was fairly – that we talked about recently and meet that two week deadline – clarify for me how we can proceed and not limit our creativity.  

Canning:  We have a number of projects that for whatever reasons sometimes aren’t able to get done within a planned year for CDBG.  So if those monies become available we could substitute this one in there and make that work.  The timelines are set up so that we make sure that we meet our (inaudible) timelines.  There are pretty heavy noticing requirements in trying to get it done.  But just because you didn’t make it onto the official list of projects for plan year 11 doesn’t mean that there might not be some opportunity to get some money in plan year 11 and at worst case we will put you in plan year 12. So it is just that we are doing our best to catch up, but like I said I think the only plan year that we have finished at this point is 2007. So these projects – it is taking – folks commit to them and then realize later what that commitment means, so we have a lot of back and forth on projects going (inaudible).  It is still a new program for us and we are trying to help people as best as we can.  

Pipal: So would there be any benefit to collaborating with the city on one of these – for having MDC participation to help get some of those dollars out to on maybe the pathways or the Nine Mile Creek immediately for 2011?

Canning:  I think the Nine Mile Creek would be perhaps the best because that timing is fairly critical because you want it to coincide with the split corridor – you can use that money for services.  So we could use it to perhaps hire someone to do the engineering study – I know that the MDC Board have talked about maybe the city doing that – there might be an opportunity for CDBG funds to do that – if the in house expertise is (inaudible) and I never knew quite (inaudible)in house expertise is there.  

Ford:  In the meeting that we had with the city, ACHD and also I am forgetting the gentleman’s name, but he is a hydrologist who has done most of the flood plain study for Meridian and we probably would need to hire him in some capacity just because he has all of the information and the knowledge.  So I think that that would probably be the best course of action.  I got the impression that (inaudible) take it on as a whole. I think they could contribute, but –

Pipal:  It sounds like there may be an opportunity for our participation if we weighed in early with Nine Mile Creek.  That we would then also be able to have Ashley look at some other priorities and other things with maybe Nampa’s success or things that have been done as well as pathways.  Is that the way you might like to approach this?

De Weerd:  Yes.

Bird:  That is fine with me.

Pipal:  Is that enough direction?

Ford:  I will know more when I get the application. I haven’t seen the application so I am not quite sure all they are asking for.  I guess one of the things that we haven’t talked about is we have our budget session for the next fiscal year, but while a match is not required would we want to put aside a certain amount of matching dollars for these projects as well too?  I don’t know if you all have any thoughts about that today.  Obviously we have not gone through that exercise, but I think it may be helpful information for the application.

Slocum:  Is that looked at from a matching standpoint as a positive when it is reviewed?  Is that a plus or --?

Canning:  No we do not have judging criteria.  We make our estimate based on which projects meet financial objective – we haven’t had so many that there has been competing interest.  So on some of them that we don’t think are viable we let Council know an (inaudible) but a not a specific judging criteria.  I suppose –

De Weerd:  It would help though.

Pipal:  Member De Weerd if you would repeat that for record –

De Weerd.  No. I already delivered my message.  

Pipal:  I think if I hear the Board correctly, Ashley I think what we would like you to do is pursue immediately the Nine Mile Creek opportunity, but then to look at the others after we – because it sounds like from what Anna said -  if we get the information to you that these are the things that we are interested in then you already have a list.

Ford: No absolutely.  I just want to get clear direction --?  ACHD determines that they do not want to be the lead are you comfortable with MDC being the lead agency on that – I don’t know what sort of process and timeframe it takes for them to make that sort of decision and given the fact that I have two weeks, I may not have a clear answer.

Canning:  I would suggest that you just work with ACHD.  We believe they – well it really does make sense.  Their folks are going to be doing the work.  Their folks are going to be out there.  For the purpose of our application, I don’t think it’s very detailed (inaudible) – unless you want to hire a construction manager I don’t think (inaudible).  
Pipal: Does that help?

Ford:  That helps.  Thank you.

Pipal:  Anything else?
10. Review and Adoption of Amended 2011 MDC By-Laws (Borton): 

Borton:  A quick administrative matters of number 10 and 11. At your last meeting you decided to change the start time of your second meeting to 4:00 for your fourth Wednesday meeting.  What you have in your packet is a resolution 11-008 directing to change your meeting time – your bylaws also have that time set, so it requires a bylaws amendment.  I didn’t know if the Board wanted to do bylaws at this meeting, so you have got a couple of choices.  You can adopt the resolution today that is in your packet.  The language that is stated in the resolution makes reference to a bylaw change that would then be brought back and approved at the next meeting. The Board is perfectly able at this meeting since the change is nearly that start time to approve the bylaws as well and if that is the case then I would just amend that one Section 3 in the resolution which makes reference to adopting the bylaws at the next meeting and amended to read that it will be adopted at this meeting.  The reason for that if the Board becomes more comfortable with bylaw amendments, which is usually the more prudent course to bring regardless of what the amendment is, bring it to the Board meeting, have it presented, but take action at the following meeting, allowing the opportunity, even though this one is relatively simple.  That is a prudent practice.
Bird:  I would go with the counsel’s recommendation; pass the bylaws (inaudible) resolution at the next meeting – 

Borton:  That is totally appropriate.  You can move on the resolution – the redline version and the final version are in your packet.  It has a little more red from maybe what you would expect – a lawyer has to change margins and everything else because that is what we do.  Really Article 3 Section 6 is the only substantive change – so now these are the best bylaws you have ever seen.  The old ones were terrible.

Bird:  You lawyers work by the hour.

De Weerd:  By the word.

Pipal:  I thought it was by the character.

Borton: Yes, I spent 12 hours working on the margins. I think they are right now.

Slocum:  That is all on the record.

Pipal:  I have lost control.  So, would you like Member Bird to make that in a form of motion?

11.
Resolution 11-008: Change in MDC Board Meeting Time for Fourth Wednesday:
Bird:  I would move that we have got a copy of the bylaw changes and we look it over and bring them back for approval or disapproval at the next meeting and at this time, pass the resolution which is the next item on the agenda.

Slocum:  Second.

Pipal:  I think just for clarification, the motion is to look at the bylaw changes that the attorney has drawn up – at this meeting we discuss it and then bring it back at the next meeting for official action on it and go ahead with the resolution changing the time for our next meeting at this meeting.

Pipal: A question for counsel is it appropriate to read the title into the record prior to discussion or how does that work?

Borton:  It has been moved and seconded and I can read the resolution by title only and then you can take a vote or discuss it and take a vote if you are ready to do so.  So resolution 11-008 change of the meeting time; a resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Urban Renewal Agency of Meridian, Idaho approving the change in meeting time and providing an effective date; the language within the resolution is consistent with the motion made by Commissioner Bird.

Pipal: Any discussion?  

De Weerd:  Is the motion just to continue this to the next meeting?

Slocum:  No.

De Weerd:  It is to pass the resolution, which adopts the new bylaws?

Pipal:  It is the indication to change the bylaws at the next meeting, isn’t that correct?

Slocum:  No it is changing the meeting time –

Pipal:  It is changing the meeting time and then we change the bylaws –

Bird:  And then we change the bylaws at the next meeting.

Borton:  Correct.

De Weerd:  So we are changing the meeting time by resolution and looking to change the bylaws at our next meeting?

Pipal:  To align with the resolution.

De Weerd:  Just wanted to be sure what I was voting on.

Pipal: No I think this is good because what we are talking about here is how we address our bylaws.  

Bird:  I think that is the deal most of the organizations that I have ever been in, you change the bylaws, you discuss it at one meeting and most of the time and it usually is monthly meetings and then you vote on it at the next.  That gives you time to do it.  But with this resolution, we have to have it changed before our next meeting.  

Slocum:  So if by chance we pass this resolution today, is our meeting going to be at 3 or 4 next meeting?

Borton:  You are fine with it at 4:00.  The most critical component is your proper notice and agenda.  You would notice it for 4:00.

Pipal:  But over the long term, we are essentially setting a precedent on how we are going to deal with the bylaw changes in the future.  Any further discussion?  

Roll Call Vote:  Slocum, aye; Jensen, aye; Bird aye; Escobar, aye; De Weerd, aye; Pipal, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 
11. Destination: Downtown Branding Discussion (Red Sky PR):
Ford: As you recall in our last destination downtown meeting some of the Board was able to stay and able to start discussing one of the priority areas which was the branding of downtown Meridian and what that would look like.  When we left this meeting, I don’t think – I think we got some direction, but I don’t think that we got everything that we needed.  So, we felt that we would come back to this meeting and have Chad present what he heard and what outstanding questions we still have in terms of being able to move forward and putting together a scope and what goes next after (inaudible).
Biggs:  Chad Biggs with Red Sky Public Relations.  Thanks Ashley.  For those on the Board who weren’t there, Jessica Flynn from our office (inaudible) at the tail end – from MDC branding to destination downtown, but I think the ultimate goal mentioned (inaudible) started consolidating and identifying the key projects was developing universal brand that can evolve from destination downtown to basically (inaudible) and capture what is going on in the urban renewal district and start putting some flesh to everything from the district names that we are identifying in destination downtown and just coming up with everything from the universal signs (inaudible) until we start building a brand for downtown Meridian.  So I know Mayor De Weerd has been looking at some of the documents in addition to what we talked about recapping, Roger Brooks from Destination Development International spoke at the state of the city for Boise and so some of those documents are enclosed for additional food for thought.  (Inaudible) identify what makes Meridian (inaudible).  So jumping back to what we heard at the last destination downtown meeting, one of our main goals is to figure out what area are we – what area are we branding?  It was decided that it could all be an urban renewal area specifically and then we starting digging into the districts a little bit and there was some dialogue as to whether there were names and concepts that people could embrace.  So some concepts came out of that in terms of (inaudible) start at the market and other channels.  (Inaudible) does this name and district make sense and start getting more public feedback into that process.  Then at the overarching process we should engage obviously the city and members of the MDC Board, Urban Renewal Districts and the general public as well as the Chamber of Commerce. So what I think we could use as additional direction is what do you see at the end of the day?  What would be a successful branding scope campaign for – what are the deliverables?  And I think it kind of weaves in for a couple of different things that we are involved with; signage and way finding to (inaudible) district names – so looking for deliverables that you would have in mind and what the timeframe might be (inaudible) and where you think the process should go.  Does that make sense?  (Inaudible).

Ford:  I think the other outstanding question should be that we should consider as well too is obviously this is outside of Red Sky’s scope for the year and their monthly activities that they do and we need to think about what is a reasonable budget number that – obviously that limit or stay on scope, but I think that is something that as we direct them to come back with a scope – you are only willing to allot a certain amount of dollars, they need to understand that now, so that they have an idea on how to tailor the scope as well.  
De Weerd: I guess what I would look for is to bring a recommended timeframe back with cost considerations for the budget discussion – if it is not in this year’s budget, I guess what can we fund out of our commitment that is budgeted this year and what would that next step be for budget consideration and discussion coming into our budget session – so break it into two pieces on what the process should be.  I do know in our sign committee we talked about it and we are very interested in moving forward on the kiosk, but I think we also need the branding as well, so if you could build some of those components into a proposal so we can kind of see what each of those steps, phases, funding would be would be helpful.  It is hard to have a discussion without knowing what that is.  

Biggs:  That is fair.  I think our goal would be to (inaudible) to our budget as much as possible.  (Inaudible) or graphic design elements (inaudible) – you wouldn’t want me designing your logo or some of the signage, but I think we will try and keep it in the scope within our regular budget and realizing that we all want to stick to budgets.  So we will plan on coming back. If there is additional elements that we didn’t discuss during the destination downtown process that we should (inaudible) value, show deliverables (inaudible) our thoughts on signage – maybe you can email me with thoughts and digest this and get back to me, but I just want to make sure that we captured the key elements. You can throw anything into the scope when we come in and you can cross off if that is not development.  We will go that route, but if there are elements that you think are (inaudible).

Pipal:  I think for just some clarification and those of you who were here correct me, but I think what we had essentially settled on after that meeting was that we had the titles of the districts that were part of the destination downtown process and that we have intended to use those since they were already identifiable in the document and some of the things that we have already done and intended to use those to basically start to get people thinking about how they are being identified as part of the urban renewal district.  As far as that being a deliverable, I don’t think we even know yet what the community thinks about this and (inaudible) where I am going to put you.  I mean we had a couple of anecdotal statements, but I think we were planning to use those and use what we already had created in destination downtown and then as far as the branding process, I think we had decided that we needed some kind of – well we had talked about doing it at the urban market, where we encourage people to look at that map and look at it in terms of branding and try to get some feedback from them in some kind of a public setting even if it wasn’t a formal public hearing or meeting. I think those would be a couple of things that we would want as part of the recap, something that we have kind of decided going forward – to use some of the resources that we already had. As far as developing a scope of work and a timeframe – I can’t remember, Ashley did we talk about when we wanted to have that completed?  Because we have timing to consider in terms of what the city is trying to do with their gateway signage because we want to be partners.  We don’t want to be well you go do your own thing and we will go off over here and do ours.  We probably need some collaboration with them in terms of deadlines and things where they plan to get things done so we can say where do we fit those and I think those should be included in what we already know about the branding process.
Ford:  I think those are conversations that we definitely need to have and I think we need to understand what the scope was from the Board’s perspective in terms to go back and to talk to those partners and to start figuring out timeframes over all because I think a lot of them will be timeframes for their part so there is not any hard and fast deadlines that we are working with from anyone that I am aware of at this point and time.  So I think if we can get that initial scope outlined that gives us something and we can get buyoff from this Board that that scope looks good then I think we can go and approach the Chamber and the city and all the other different partners out there and say okay here is what we are thinking and does this fit within you are trying to accomplish and start working that way.  But I would like that buy in from the Board first as to this process before we go have those conversations.  We definitely know that they are out there.

Pipal:  Well particularly with the city and the discussions that we have had previously – when the City of Meridian decides that they are going to do something, then generally it gets done and once the decision is made there is not a lot of time in my experience that really elapses between when we are going to do something, when this community decides it is going to do something and then when it gets done.  So I am a little concerned that we don’t go to them and say we want to do a public involvement process, we want to develop a scope of work, this is when we anticipate it being done and how does that fit with your timeline to basically let them know because what I would suggest is if they are already that much further in the process then we should take what they are already doing and put that before the public and integrate it, rather than take it just from the downtown destination perspective.
Ford:  The reason I made the comment that I did is it is my understanding from talking with the city that they don’t have a timeframe at this point and are looking to us to come back to them and work together, so that is the reason I made the comment that I did.  

De Weerd: We certainly have done our first phase, it has been funded and signs will be going up soon.  The next phase is what we wanted to work with the downtown and the community on what that second phase is going to be, so there isn’t a specific timeframe on that at this point, other than looking for the desire of the urban renewal district and the goals of this Board on when you wanted to get signage and have way finding type of directional signs as well.  So how we could integrate our two goals together.  So yeah, it is kind of – that is why I would want to see something solid that we can bring and get feedback on from the various partners would be helpful.

Pipal:  So would we want then to proceed with kind of our public involvement process as well as the development of the scope of work of what it would take to get us to a branding?

Biggs:  I will take that on.  

Pipal:  Okay, very good.  Any other questions for Chad?

De Weerd:  I just wanted to say that we had a good signage committee meeting and through our historian locate some good documents that (inaudible) and we are further along than we thought we were.  
12. Website Update Discussion (Red Sky PR):

Biggs:  A quick web update, we have a site map and (inaudible) markups to you a month ago – basically the integration process for downtown, Meridian Development Corporation’s website and the Ground Floor is moving along – kind of quick – we cut the look and feel of the destination downtown for the most part, but as you can see destination downtown, Meridian Development Corporation and Ground Floor are the first – are the main options here so when you toggle to portions of their own sub – they all have the same look and feel but obviously content specific to each one.  Ashley and I met with (inaudible) on Friday and took a quick tour of the development sites of MDC and it is moving right along and this month will be devoted to developing content, but I think that we should have the bulk of that ready by this time next month.  While we are in that process and the site map is on were there any concerns of areas that we missed (inaudible) – it is going to keep a lot of the upscale content that we have existing today, it is just being migrated, so we are not going to lose any documents or any content, but I think we have an opportunity to talk more – since it wasn’t easy for us to manipulate the MDC website, this gives us opportunity to build out that content a bit more – who is MDC, working with MDC?  (Inaudible) there is a lot of opportunity there for – probably Commissioner Jensen is the only one that has interest in this but (inaudible) background platform for the new site and so it is very adaptable and easy to manipulate and if anybody wants to have that access to that (inaudible) but in the meantime if there is content that you think we have missed from the site map, be sure to let us know.  Project Manager Ford and I will be working on concept over the next month.  
Canning:  I know that Bryan in my office had been looking at the MDC’s site trying to find stuff and if you want a person that is not involved on the Board to look through it, I know he would love to have an opportunity to help out and desperately trying to find things and things were broken – so if you would like him to you can send me the link and I can forward it on to him.

Ford:  Basically when we first started talking about what content should be on here, I went through – I seem to like the Downtown Boise Association – they have a great website and I have looked at other urban renewal websites and I kind of took what I thought was the best of the best of all of them and will incorporate those into our site as well, too.  

(Speaker Unknown):  We could easily take the graphics and colored pallet to apply to the portal to the downtown – 

Ford:  Perfect.  

Biggs:  Any other questions?  
13. Public Relations Report (Red Sky PR):

Biggs:  Just a recap of last month’s focus.  Obviously the Meridian Urban Market was our focus we had last month – (inaudible) Chamber presentation to the Meridian Chamber and from my perspective and I am not saying this because I showed the presentation, but because I thought it was well received; there was good enthusiasm from (inaudible) message and that seemed to spark some interest with businesses.  So continue to work with the Chamber.  Beyond that there was one (inaudible) that actually got published last month.  The website has been another process and that will be a lot of focus going forward as well as the Meridian Market and even though we launched the Meridian Urban Market I still want to try and work with them to get some morning show like KTVB show, but we continue to keep it in minds.  So, I am not going to forget after the first launch.  I thought it was a good story and it is always easier from my perspective when it is something new and fresh (inaudible).  

Pipal:  Any questions?  Thank you Chad. 
14. Counsel’s Report (Borton):

Borton:  You will like my reports – this one too is short.  Just to close the loop on a comment earlier, if it is okay with the Board? 

Pipal:  Please.

Borton:  What I would suggest – one thing I would do is complete this façade improvement discussion and I would like to meet with – is it Keith and Craig that is on the committee?  Yeah the members on the committee between now and the next meeting and give you some final clarity on what can or can’t be done – the specific scope of what a façade improvement through an urban renewal agency can do and answer your question and perhaps bring it back to the Board and the Board gets their questions answered and the existing program is implemented and going forward lawfully and properly.
Bird: Good idea Joe.  We could get halfway through something and find out we are doing it illegally.  We will get that done and coordinate with Ms. Ford and any CDBG application issues that ties into those and get those questions answered too.  

Pipal:  Who is officially on that committee right now?  Because it was established a long time ago.

Bird:  Ashley, Jim and myself.  
Borton:  Okay.  That is the report.  We will get that done and I will coordinate the meeting and be ready for our 4:00 Wednesday.
15. Project Manager’s Report (Ford):

Ford:  I need some follow up on the destination downtown meeting that we have scheduled for this month given the fact that we are kind of in limbo between the way finding signage, we have had our committee meetings, we are moving forward on the banks with that sub committee and then the branding is the third priority – we may not have a whole lot to discuss as for a specific meeting for destination downtown.  I am happy to hold a meeting – if we do hold a meeting what would you like to accomplish in that meeting given that there are all of these things moving forward or moving around and we don’t have absolute direction yet?  

Pipal: I don’t know what the rest of the Board would think, but I think that list of people that we send it out to would be a good idea, rather than to hold a meeting but to send them some kind of update on where we are and just simply say that we are in an in between phase and we won’t actually be holding a physical meeting, but here is where we are and here is where we are going and just send them a little short newsletter because they all get invited via email, correct?  
Ford:  Yes, we can certainly do that.

Pipal:  Then we can tell them about the way finding and signage and working with the city and just let them know – maybe a summary of the market reminding them to come on Thursdays rather than to try and have a meeting if we don’t have a full agenda for them.
Ford:  I just want to be very conscientious of everybody’s time.

Pipal:  Well and when they do come we want them to be engaged and provide feedback.  

De Weerd:  I agree, we shouldn’t have a meeting just to have a meeting, but just to follow up we had a discussion several meetings ago first about the downtown business meeting regarding the urban market and then the next desired meeting was to re-look at the parking plan and to have an opportunity to provide feedback.  I know that Member Escobar and I have talked to one of the downtown business owners, the owner of the saddle shop and he raises some very good points and what I would like to invite the Board to go out and do is maybe if Ashley could send that parking map that the Board adopted several years ago out to the members again and then go out and walk it and see if it continues to make sense to you as you look at what is going on in the street and what is being suggested on the sign prior to that meeting.  It would be very advantageous going into that discussion with some of that knowledge.  I just want to make sure that is kept on the radar and the other thing is on the urban market, I would just like to congratulate, Red Sky, Courtney and Ashley for a successful first market. I saw most of you down there, but one of the things, too that I think would be helpful is to maybe look at doing something at the Ground Floor for downtown business owners that are not on Idaho on how to attract people that are at the market to their place as well.  Recommendations for – I know that Mollie had a little nice outdoor area that kind of invited people in – and let people know what they need to do when they invite people out.  If there is a permitting issue or – I think it would be helpful for us to just do an educational outrage and a how to pull people into your place of business too.  So, everyone can take advantage of that new energy in our downtown.
Ford:  Mayor could this be something that Brenda could partner with us on?  To assist with those tactics?

Pipal:  Or the Chamber –

De Weerd:  Or the Chamber or – you know I think get other –

Pipal:  I think for Gwen the marketing side, but then obviously if there was a permitting or some kind of an issue we would need someone to help explain that process.  Gwen may know it already and may be able to direct people to the right folks to go do an outdoor sidewalk.

De Weerd:  I think we could be present at that and share what we need to.

Pipal:  I don’t know if it would be Brenda, but the right person from the city.

Ford:  I am just thinking economic strategies and obviously Brenda and that is her background and specialty.  I think she would be really good –

Pipal:  Yeah, definitely keep her in the loop.  Thank you.

Smith:  Mollie Smith (inaudible) in downtown.  The gal that came in yesterday said that I needed to have – she didn’t really tell me what – but something like a conditional use permit or something – they said it was online and I went online and I couldn’t find it.
De Weerd:  You are sitting next to someone that knows.

Canning:  Come up with me after this and I can help you.

Smith:  I called the City Clerk because they told that is where I needed to go.  They didn’t know what I was talking about.  Ashley went over and bought pie and vegetables – because there wasn’t a lot of seating, so they actually came over and sat at our tables and were still able to listen to the music.  They had their pie or drinks and went back over and so it was really kind of interactive.  So it was kind of cool.

Canning:  For clarification it is Mollie’s beer and wine license doesn’t allow her to be on the sidewalk.  She has to have a conditional use permit and we can get that squared away.

Smith:  Okay, well they didn’t tell me that.  I didn’t know what it was.

Pipal:  It sounds like it is Anna that needs to at least be put into that loop.  I think that is everything unless somebody has something else to add?  

Slocum:  I don’t know if I missed it the last couple of meetings, but I did want to thank Ms. Ford’s brief description, just a sentence after each of the items in your report of what you have been doing the past month as it was very helpful.  

Ford:  Thank you I appreciate that.

Pipal:  I agree.  Easier to digest.
16. Adjourn the Meeting (Pipal):

Bird:  I move to adjourn.
De Weerd:  Second.

Pipal:  All those in favor say aye.  Opposed?

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
(AUDIO ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)
APPROVED:
________________________________



____/______/_______

JULIE PIPAL, CHAIR
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